
 

 

Democratic Services ◦ Chief Executive’s Department ◦ Leicestershire County Council ◦ County Hall  

Glenfield ◦ Leicestershire ◦ LE3 8RA ◦ Tel: 0116 232 3232 ◦ Email: democracy@leics.gov.uk 
 

 

www.twitter.com/leicsdemocracy    www.facebook.com/leicsdemocracy  

  
www.leics.gov.uk/local_democracy  

 

 
 

 

 

LEICESTERSHIRE SAFER COMMUNITIES STRATEGY BOARD 
 

Friday, 20 March 2020 at 10.00 am 
 

Sparkenhoe Committee Room, County Hall, Glenfield 
 

Agenda 
 

1.  
  

Introductions  
 

  

2.  
  

Minutes of previous meeting.  
 

 (Pages 3 - 8) 

3.  
  

Matters arising  
 

  

4.  
  

Declarations of interest  
 

  

5.  
  

LSCSB Action Log.  
 

 (Pages 9 - 10) 

6.  
  

Cyber Crime.  
 

 (Pages 11 - 24) 

7.  
  

Modern Day Slavery Action Group.  
 

 (Pages 25 - 28) 

8.  
  

Children and Family Wellbeing Service.  
 

  

 Report to follow. 
 

 

9.  
  

LSCSB Performance Update - Quarter 3.  
 

 (Pages 29 - 32) 

10.  
  

Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner 
and Strategic Partnership Board Update.  
 

 (Pages 33 - 40) 

11.  
  

Hate Crime/Incidents.  
 

 (Pages 41 - 48) 

12.  
  

Domestic and Sexual Violence Abuse 
Reprocurement.  
 

 (Pages 49 - 52) 

13.  
  

Other business  
 

  

14.  
  

Date of the next meeting.  
 

  

 The next meeting of the Board is scheduled for 26 June 2020 at 
10:00am. 
 

 

 

mailto:democracy@leics.gov.uk
http://www.twitter.com/leicsdemocracy
http://www.facebook.com/LeicsDemocracy
http://www.leics.gov.uk/local_democracy
http://www.leics.gov.uk/local_democracy


This page is intentionally left blank



 

  

 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the Leicestershire Safer Communities Strategy Board held at 
County Hall, Glenfield on Friday, 6 December 2019.  
 

PRESENT 
 

Mr. I. D. Ould OBE CC (in the Chair) 
 

Cllr. Les Phillimore  Community Safety Partnership Strategy 
Group Chair - Blaby District Council  

Cllr. Deborah Taylor  Community Safety Partnership Strategy 
Group Chair – Charnwood Borough 
Council  

Cllr. Michael Rickman  Community Safety Partnership Strategy 
Group Chair – Harborough District Council  

Cllr. Kevin Loydall  Community Safety Partnership Strategy 
Group Chair – Oadby and Wigston 
Borough Council  

Superintendent Sian Walls  Leicestershire Police  
Lord Willy Bach  Police and Crime Commissioner  
Mr. R. Shepherd CC  Combined Fire Authority  
Katherine Blake-Smith Clinical Commissioning Groups 

 
Officers  
  
   

Julie Robinson Charnwood Borough Council 
John Richardson Blaby District Council 
Mark Smith Oadby and Wigston Borough Council 
Keith Aubrey  
Rik Basra  

Melton Borough Council  
Leicestershire County Council  

Carly Turner Leicestershire County Council 
Chris Brown  North West Leicestershire District Council  
Thomas Day  Harborough District Council  
Rachel Burgess Hinckley and Bosworth Borough Council 
Gurjit Samra-Rai  Leicestershire County Council/Violence 

Reduction Network  
  

Others 
  
Supt Shane O’Neill   Leicestershire Police  
Lydia Patsalides Crimestoppers 

 
  
Apologies for absence 
 
Cllr. Kevin Loydall Oadby and Wigston Borough Council 

Cllr. Michael Mullaney Hinckley and Bosworth Borough Council 

Cllr. Alan Pearson Melton Borough Council 

Cllr. Andrew Woodman North West Leicestershire District Council 

Bob Bearne  The Derbyshire, Leicestershire, 

3 Agenda Item 2



 
 

 

 

Nottinghamshire & Rutland Community 
Rehabilitation Company  

 
 Introductions.  
 
The Chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting and introductions were made. 
 

33. Minutes of previous meeting.  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 20 September 2019 were taken as read and 
confirmed as a correct record. 
 

34. Matters arising  
 
There were no matters arising. 
 

35. LSCSB Action Log  
 
The Board considered the Leicestershire Safer Communities Strategy Board Action Log, 
a copy of which, marked ‘Agenda Item 4’, is filed with these minutes. 
 
Rik Basra, Community Safety Co-ordinator, Leicestershire County Council, updated the 
Board regarding the status of each action on the log. 
 
With regard to Action no. 5 and the briefing on Glen Parva prison which had been 
postponed until the Board meeting on 20 March 2020, concerns were expressed that this 
meeting was several months away and information regarding the prison could be 
required before then. Consequently officers agreed to give consideration to whether a 
meeting could be arranged prior to March 2020 to provide information regarding the 
prison or whether information could be circulated in the meantime.  
 
With regard to Action no. 7 it was noted that the next edition of Leicestershire Matters 
was not due to be published for a few months therefore consideration needed to be given 
to whether other media could be used to raise awareness of car thefts in the meantime.  
Reassurance was given that Leicestershire Police were running campaigns on their 
website and Facebook pages regarding car theft, and Community Safety Partnerships 
had also been active in publicising the issue using local newsletters. The Chairman 
requested that officers give consideration to whether content relating to car theft could be 
placed on the County Council website before Christmas and Rik Basra agreed to look 
into this. The Board acknowledged the importance of still using Leicestershire Matters to 
disseminate messages as this was delivered to every property in the County. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
(a) That the contents of the Action Log be noted; 
 
(b) That action no. 1 ‘Prevent Statistics for each CSP area’ be removed from the Action 

Log as it was not possible for this action to be completed. 
 

36. Declarations of interest  
 
The Chairman invited members who wished to do so to declare any interests in respect 
of items on the agenda for the meeting.  

4



 
 

 

 

 
No declarations were made.   
 

37. LSCSB Performance Update - Quarter 2.  
 
The Board considered a report of Rik Basra, Community Safety Co-ordinator, 
Leicestershire County Council, the purpose of which was to update the Board regarding 
Safer Communities Performance for Quarter 2 2019/20. A copy of the report, marked 
‘Agenda Item 6’, is filed with these minutes. 
 
Clarification was given that the data in the report for Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB) was 
taken from the Leicestershire Police Storm database but not the Sentinel (ASB Case 
Management) database. Some incidents of ASB were recorded on both databases 
therefore if both databases were used for the report there would be duplication. It was 
reported that some Community Safety Partnerships considered both Storm and Sentinel 
data and looked at trends and differences across both. In future it was intended that the 
Sentinel database would be linked to the Niche database which would make it easier to 
provide combined data for ASB in reports. The Chairman stated that he found it useful 
that the ASB data had been broken down into three categories: nuisance, environmental 
and personal. The Police and Crime Commissioner emphasised that in his view ASB was 
underreported therefore the true figures were likely to be higher. 
 
It was confirmed that the Multi Agency Risk Assessment Conference (MARAC) data in 
the report related to the region. In response to a question officers agreed to give 
consideration to whether national data could be provided in future reports to enable 
comparison of trends between regional and national data.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the 2019/20 Quarter 2 Performance Update be noted. 
 

38. Community Safety Agreement Update.  
 
The Board considered a report of Rik Basra, Community Safety Co-ordinator, 
Leicestershire County Council which enabled the Board to review the Community Safety 
Agreement (CSA) and governance arrangements designed to support CSA management. 
A copy of the report, marked ‘Agenda Item 7’, is filed with these minutes. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That: 
(a) The content of the report be noted; 
(b) The continued use of the Community Safety Agreement in its current format and 

design be approved; 
(c) The Community Safety Agreement governance arrangements as set out in the 

report be approved. 
 

39. Crimestoppers.  
 
The Board received a presentation from Lydia Patsalides, Regional Manager, 
Crimestoppers on the work of Crimestoppers in the region. A copy of the presentation 
slides, marked ‘Agenda Item 8’, is filed with these minutes. 
 

5



 
 

 

 

Lydia Patsalides offered to attend any Community Safety Partnership meetings as 
required. 
 
In response to a question it was clarified that Crimestoppers did not have strong links 
with Childline but they did work with the National Society for Prevention of Cruelty to 
Children. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the contents of the presentation be noted. 
 

40. Endeavour Model - Hinckley and Bosworth Borough Council.  
 
The Board considered a report from Rachel Burgess, Hinckley and Bosworth Borough 
Council, which provided an update on the Endeavour Partnership work. A copy of the 
report, marked ‘Agenda Item 9’, is filed with these minutes. 
 
The Chairman complemented Hinckley and Bosworth Borough Council, and particularly 
their Housing Department, for the work they had carried out in relation to the Endeavour 
Partnership.  
 
It was noted that as it had worked well in Hinckley and Bosworth with the Endeavour Co-
ordinator being trained to access police records, other Districts such as Charnwood 
Borough were employing their own co-ordinator with the same access to police 
databases. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the contents of the report be noted.  
 

41. Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner Update.  
 
The Board considered a report from the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner 
which provided an update on the work of the Office. A copy of the report, marked 
‘Agenda Item 10’, is filed with these minutes. 
 
Arising from discussions the following points were noted: 
 
(i) With regards to the work being carried out to enhance employment opportunities for 

ex-offenders, consideration was being given to whether rules around vetting should 
be looked at as currently this was preventing some organisations from employing 
ex-offenders. 

 
(ii) The funding for the Violence Reduction Network of £880,000 was required to be 

spent before 31 March 2020 however a letter from the Home Office had indicated 
that additional funding would be provided for a further 12 months (although this was 
not binding on any new Government). The Violence Reduction Network was 
establishing a new service in the Emergency Department at Leicester Royal 
Infirmary to support young people that presented with serious violence related 
injuries. The Violence Reduction Network was looking for a key point of contact in 
each locality to help with what local services were available and Board members 
would be contacted regarding this in due course.  The Violence Reduction Network 
was conducting a Strategic Needs Assessment across Leicester, Leicestershire and 

6



 
 

 

 

Rutland and would be liaising with Community Safety Partnerships to obtain local 
information, case studies and data to feed into the Strategic Needs Assessment. 
Workshops would be taking place in January and February 2020. 
 

(iii) Training was being planned across Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland to ensure 
that staff were aware of the Public Health approach which was now being used in 
Leicestershire. 

 
(iv) With regards to partnership working the Police and Crime Commissioner met 

regularly with the Cabinet Lead Member for Community Safety at Leicestershire 
County Council to discuss community safety issues.  

 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the contents of the report be noted. 
 

42. Exclusion of the press and public.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That under Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded for 
the following item of business on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in Paragraph 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act and 
that, in all circumstances of the case, the public interest in maintaining the exemption 
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information:- 
 
CSP Response to SOC/Violent Crime- Charnwood/ Op Lionheart. 
 

43. CSP Response to SOC/Violent Crime- Charnwood/ Op Lionheart.  
 
The Board received a presentation from Superintendent Shane O’Neill, Leicestershire 
Police, and Julie Robinson, Charnwood Borough Council which provided an update on 
actions taken to tackle Serious and Organised Crime in Leicestershire and the lessons 
learnt.  The presentation was not for publication by virtue of paragraph 7 of Schedule 
12(A) of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 
With regards to Operation Lionheart a Board member questioned what intelligence was 
required to assist this type of operation, what community work was required, what 
planning could be put in place to ensure issues which arose at the time the operation 
became live could be dealt with, and whether information sharing be improved. It was 
suggested that partners could provide answers to these questions at a future Board 
meeting. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
(a) That the contents of the presentation be noted; 
 
(b) That officers be requested to provide a further update regarding Serious Organised 

Crime at a future Board meeting.  
 

 

 

7



 
 

 

 

44. Date of the next meeting.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the next meeting of the Board take place on 20 March 2020 at 10:00am. 
 
 

     10.00 am - 12.05 pm CHAIRMAN 
     06 December 2019 

 

8



Leicestershire Safer Communities Strategy Board Action Log 
 

No. Date Action Responsible 
Officer 

Comments 
 

Status 

1. 20.9.19 Use Leicestershire Matters and Social media 
to publicise car thefts and devices for 
blocking car signal. 

Katie Pegg (Team 
Manager, Media 
Relations, LCC) 

The most recent edition 
of Leicestershire 
Matters already had too 
many stories for the 
item to be included. It is 
hoped to be included in 
the next edition. 

Amber  

2. 06.12.19 National MARAC figures so that they can be 
compared with regional figures. 

Rik Basra   

3. 06.12.19 Op Lionheart to be placed on the agenda for 
a future meeting and partners to answer 
questions raised by Chris Brown of NWLDC 
at the meeting on 6 December 2019. 

Rik Basra   

 

 
9

A
genda Item

 5



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

LEICESTERSHIRE SAFER COMMUNITIES STRATEGY BOARD 

 20TH MARCH 2020  

LSCSB UPDATE: CYBERCRIME PARTNERSHIP 

Background 
 
1. Cybercrime is a recurring Strategic Priority for Leicestershire Police and is 

within the Police and Crime Commissioners Plan until 2021. Cybercrime and 
the risks associated are deemed a Tier 1 Government threat. The threat posed 
internationally by states and organised crime groups is still considered high 
either for disruption or financial gain. Action Fraud continues to be the national 
reporting and dissemination body for Cybercrime. 

 
2. Leicestershire Police setup a dedicated Cyber dependent Crime Unit in 2016 

made up of four detectives. Since June 2018 every Police Force has been 
funded to ensure there is a Cybercrime investigative capability and 
protect/prevent roles attached. This funding will cease in April 2021. 

 
3. Between April 2019 and April 2020 there have been 734 Cyber dependent 

offences affecting the people of Leicestershire. This is made up of 84% of 
individuals and 16% businesses. Cyber dependent offences have a direct cost 
of £1.5million pounds with far ongoing impact that is more difficult to quantify. 

 
Notable developments and challenges: 
 
Past Year 
 
4. Expansion of the dedicated Cyber dependent crime unit within the Local Force 

to contain 3 dedicated Detectives, a Cyber Community Support Officer and a 
Cyber Protect Officer. 

 
5. Development of Prevent role within the Regional Organised Crime Unit and 

supportive training to raise awareness within key staff within Leicestershire 
Police. 

 
6. Creation and running of two dedicated Cybercrime Conferences to support 

those in the Charity sector following research highlighting their vulnerability. 
 
Coming Year 
 
7. Embedding of Prevent process throughout local education, social services and 

service based sectors to ensure the early identification of appropriate 
candidates who may be at risk of offending. 

  
8. Introduction and development of the East Midlands Cyber Resilience Centre. 
 

11 Agenda Item 6



9. Ongoing development of resources to include both staffing and equipment to 
meet increasing demand of Cyber dependent crime. 

 
10. Develop Digital Forensics capability of Cyber dependent unit and associated 

Digital Forensics Unit. 
 
11. Empower and enable Safeguarding PCSO’s and cadets to undertake simple 

awareness raising sessions throughout the communities of Leicestershire and 
complete simple risk assessments around simple setups. 

 
12. Development of a range of “scenarios” and tests that can be provided as a tool 

for organisations to test themselves and understand their own reactions to what 
are examples of real life cases. 

 

 
Key issues for partnership working or affecting partners 
 
13. As the workplace continues to centralise around IT infrastructure the options of 

being targeted increase as well as the impact of even a simple incident. (Office 
365 migration, VOIP calls etc.) 

 
14. Reporting of “near misses” and minor incidents is still low limiting the 

opportunities to prepare for and manage ongoing risk. 
 

15. The actions of the above work will ensure that the people of Leicestershire are 
more aware of online risk and in a better position to understand the means and 
methods of reporting both criminal activity but also appropriate intelligence. 

 
16. Staff (normally through mistakes) are still the largest causal feature of most 

cybercrime attacks failing to adhere to simple policy or advice due to a lack of 
training and awareness. 

 

17. Understanding amongst the public and businesses is still poor meaning that the 
full threat is often only truly understood during or after a serious incident 
(Wannacry). There is not enough work completed to try and 
measure/understand the impact of even a simple incident. 

 
 
Issues in local areas 
 
18. Repeating key issues within the local area are: 

 
a. Ransomware targeting Businesses (primarily small & medium 

enterprises); 
 

b. Unauthorised access to personal social media accounts; 
 

c. Targeted Hacking of Businesses to secure data; 

12



 
d. Unauthorised access and exploitation of Office 365 vulnerabilities 

within companies who have not kept it updated. 
 
 
Recommendations for the Board 
 
19. The board is asked to: 

 
a. Support and encourage the adoption of Cybercrime as a strategic 

priority across all local authority span; 
 

b. Support the setup, advertisement and successful utilisation of a 
Cybercrime Prevent referral process across Leicestershire; 
 

c. Ensure staff within all stakeholder organisations receives Cybercrime 
prevention advice in order to keep themselves safe online; 

 
d. Encourage membership of the Cybercrime Strategic Oversight group to 

help ensure effective information sharing and collaborative working of 
all parties involved. 

 
Officer to contact 
 
Detective Chief Inspector 4021 Reme Gibson 
Digital Hub 
Leicestershire Police 
 
Tel:         101 ext 334021  
Email:     reme.gibson@leicestershire.pnn.police.uk 

13



This page is intentionally left blank



leics.police.uk

CYBERCRIME

Leicestershire Safer Communities 

Strategy Board 10th March 2020 

Detective Chief Inspector Reme Gibson

Leicestershire Police Cybercrime Strategic Lead

15



leics.police.uk

- Tier 1 Government Risk

Cyber Crime - Why such a fuss?

- Strategic Priority of Leicestershire Police
- Police and Crime Plan 2017-201

- Now more crimes online than offline

- WHEN … not IF it affects us all

16



leics.police.uk3

Cybercrime

“Criminal activity carried out by means of 

computers or the internet...”

“...Computer crime, or cybercrime, is any 

crime that involves a computer and a network 

either to commit offences or intended as the 

target”

Wikipedia/Oxford Dictionary (2015)

Cybercrimes: Fraud, Harassment, Child Grooming, Theft.

ANYONE can be a victim ranging from 
individuals, to targeted attacks on key 

businesses but often the most damage is 
caused by those which use a vulnerability 

across a range of softwares. 
For example Wannacry and the NHS.

17



leics.police.uk

• Protect
• Raise awareness
• Simple advice

• Prevent – Identify those at risk of offending
• Identification
• Diversion
• Development
• De-escalation

• Prepare
• When.. not if.. affected
• Further understanding of impact

• Pursue 
• Lock up those offending - *issue*

How do we deal with Cybercrime?

18



leics.police.uk

We MUST be proactive and intelligence led!

How we Keep Ahead of the Game .. 

19



leics.police.uk

Things we are Proud of:

• Expansion and maturation of Cyber dependent crime unit:
• 3 Detectives plus a Detective Sergeant

• 1 Cyber PCSO

• 1 Cyber Protect officer

• Prevent role created and linked to regional and national issues.

• Two Cybercrime conferences run locally targeting hard to reach 
groups which were well attended and under budget to spread 
the messages of how to keep yourself safe online.

• National funding KPI’s reached with 100% Cybercrime victims 
gaining investigative support, 100% of victims receiving support 
to mitigate repeat.

• National recognition for being at the forefront of investigative 
capability leading on several incidents with international reach.

20



leics.police.uk

Things to do:

• Create and develop Prevent referral scheme for organisations to 
help them identify someone at risk of becoming an offender and 
feed the information through the right channels.

• Empower and enable key staff members to share their 
knowledge/experience others and provide advice.

• Create a toolbox of scenarios and considerations to make it as 
simple to follow for organisations.

• Develop and deliver a baseline assessment for key small/medium 
enterprises to identify recurring themes and how we can deal.

21



leics.police.uk

What do we need:

• Points of contact within key stakeholders to discuss changes in our 
system.

• Support and encourage training of staff across organisations to 
minimise risk of most issues.

• Review of intelligence gaps across Cybercrime and identify 
associated opportunities to improve understanding.

• Ensure advertising within organisations is completed around core 
messages to both keep self safe but also to identify threats.

22



leics.police.uk

Questions?

DCI Reme Gibson – Strategic lead

For questions, advice or contact:
Email: Cybercrime@Leicestershire.pnn.police.uk
Twitter: @Leicscyberaware / @LeicsCybercrime

23

mailto:Cybercrime@Leicestershire.pnn.police.uk


T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

LEICESTERSHIRE SAFER COMMUNITIES STRATEGY BOARD 

20TH MARCH 2020  

LSCSB UPDATE: LEICESTER, LEICESTERSHIRE AND RUTLAND 

MODERN SLAVERY ACTION GROUP 

Background 
 

1. The Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland Modern Slavery Action group 

(LLRMSAG) commenced in June 2018 bringing together different agencies and 

organisations (both governmental and non-governmental agencies including 

the private sector) committed to sharing intelligence and working collaboratively 

to reduce the prevalence of Modern Slavery and Human Trafficking in 

Leicester, Leicestershire and Ruland (LLR). 

2. The LLRMSAG has representatives from 37 public, private and third sector 

organisations, including Leicestershire Police, De Montfort University (DMU), 

the Office of the Police Crime Commissioner, Local Authorities, HM Revenue 

and Customs, Gangmasters and Labour Abuse Authority (GLAA), Government 

Agencies Intelligence Network, and leading non-governmental organisations 

such as Unseen, Stop the Traffik and Barnardo’s.  

3. The LLRMSAG meets on the first Wednesday of every month, coordinated by 

the DMU lecturer Laura Pajón and chaired by Detective Inspector Jen Heggs 

(Leicestershire Police) of the Modern Slavery and Human Trafficking team.  

4. The following gaps were noted when the partnership was set up: 

a. Lack of awareness of Modern Slavery by members of the public; 

b. Lack of awareness and understanding at the professional level; 

c. Lack of a victim safeguarding pathway; 

d. Lack of modern slavery data and problem profile. 

 

5. Strategic objectives, Terms of Reference and a partnership delivery plan have 

now been established, providing focus and vision for the LLRMSAG. 

 

Notable developments and challenges: 
 
Past Year 
 
6. There has been a significant amount of work delivered by the LLRMSAG during 

the past 12 months, including: 

25 Agenda Item 7



 Webpage for easy access to information and guidance (aimed at 
professionals and the general public): 
https://llrmodernslaveryactiongroup.our.dmu.ac.uk 

 #knowthesigns #stopmodernslavery awareness-raising campaign launched in 
June 2019.   

 Delivery of modern slavery intensification week. 

 Development of a basic schools training package. 

 Workshops on Labour exploitation. 

 Briefing sessions delivered to more than 200 professionals from different 
agencies (i.e. local authorities, fire and rescue service, NHS, etc.) 

o Briefings have been delivered by Leicestershire Police or the 
coordinator of the partnership. 

o Different partner members have led briefing sessions within their own 
organisations/community (e.g. job centred, police, NHS, faith 
community). 

 Establishing a training tasking group for the development of training packages 
for delivery to relevant agencies. 

 Conducted multi-agency proactive activities in identified risk areas within LLR. 

 Joint enforcement operations. 
 
 
Outputs 
 
7. Some key outputs since the implementation of the partnership: 

 Since the launch of the LLRMSAG webpage in October 2019, the webpage 
has attracted so far 556 views. 

 Evaluation of the training shows an increase in the level of understanding of 
HT aspects. 

 Reports from the MS helpline indicate an increase in the number of victims 
identified, but not an increase in the total number of cases identified. Before 
the implementation of the partnership, the MS helpline identified 34 cases of 
MS and 87 victims of trafficking (i.e. the year 2017 and Q1 and Q2 year 
2018). After the implementation of the partnership, 33 cases have been 
identified and 117 victims of trafficking (i.e. Q3 and Q4 year 2018 and the year 
2019). The lack of increase in the number of cases identified suggests a need 
for further awareness raining on the MS helpline. 

 An update on data from Leicestershire police on MS crimes and incidents 
recorded will be provided during the meeting. 

 
Coming Year 
 
8. There are ongoing initiatives and actions taken, which aim to see the results 

within the coming year: 
 

 Training tasking group:  
 

 The group has undertaken a large amount of research around the different 
material on MS including presentations, leaflets, downloadable toolkits, 
guidance etc. The aims are to create presentations for the voluntary 

26



sector, statutory and non-statutory agencies and first responders. Once 
created these will be sent for review to the LLRMSAG. If agreed, the 
objective will be to deliver them to agencies, businesses, authorities etc. 
so that knowledge and training can be shared as well as awareness of the 
LLRMSAG raised. 

 

 Awareness-raising voluntary sector and faith group: 
o A partnership collaboration with Voluntary Action Leicestershire and the 

GLAA has been established to pilot a Workshop on awareness-raising to 
voluntary sectors leads aiming to provide guidance and signposting for the 
support of victims within the community and voluntary sector. The work 
aims to be nationally disseminated. 

o A working group to engage with faith groups has been set up to raise 
awareness and promote identification/reporting of victims of trafficking. 

 

 Efforts have been focused on increasing links with the business sector, in 
particular retailers. 

 
 
Key issues for partnership working or affecting partners 
 
9. There are challenges that are hindering the productivity of the group including; 

 Although attendance at the meeting is good, and there is appropriate 

participation by all, it has become apparent, however, that representation at 

the meeting by Law Enforcement Agencies and Non-government 

organisations is not at the right level, demonstrated by attendees being 

unable to make decisions or take away workstreams. 

 Representatives from other organisations are unable to take away work 

streams from the delivery plan nor make decisions on behalf of their 

organisation; the police and the LLRMSAG coordinator are currently the only 

representatives with any workstreams. 

 Representation from the Local Authorities is poor.  Some representatives 

attend but do not appear to share the information within the organisations. 

 The only source of funding currently available to the group is from the 

Leicestershire police, DMU and the OPCC.  The group has recently had to 

turn down awareness-raising events due to funding issues. 

 The demands for training across the organisation has increased. However, 

there is a current lack of capability to deliver all the requests. 

 Intelligence and information sharing is inconsistent and not expeditious.  

Information sharing may cause short and long term barriers. 

 The lack of a safehouse, and a safeguarding-pathway in place, difficult the 

safeguarding of victim of trafficking. 

 

 
 
 

27



Aspirations/ initiatives 
 
10. In view of the challenges, the coordinator and chair of the partnership (in 

agreement with the rest of the partners) propose the following initiatives to 
improve the effectiveness of the partnership (some of them have already been 
proposed to the Vulnerability Executive Group): 

 Establishment of a strategic governance group to lead on objectives and 
ensure strategic buy-in, allocation of responsibilities within the delivery 
plan, and funding. 

 Allocation of Modern Slavery leads for each organisation to ensure 
information flow, clear lines of communication and delivery of LLRMSAG 
training. 

 Establishing a Modern Slavery MARAC for quick reporting of cases and 
effective joint operation for prosecution and safeguarding. 

 Exploration of funding opportunities for a safe-house for victims. 

 Allocation of clear, direct and established sources for funding. 

 Development of a Modern Slavery problem profile for the LLR area. 
 
 
 
Issues in local areas 
 
11. The Garment industry is a risk area of exploitation in Leicester. Currently, the 

partnership lack the resources, capability, and strategic leadership to propose a 
solid plan to target the issue effectively. 

 
 
Recommendations for the Board 
 
12. We ask the board to  

(a) Acknowledge the progress made so far in awareness-raising and joint 
operations, considering the challenges faced; 

(b) Support the partnership in the allocation of Modern Slavery leads in CSPs and 
other relevant organisations; 

(c) Support the partnership in the identification of sources for funding for a safe 
house for victims of trafficking; 

(d) Assist the LLRMSAG in the development (and implementation) of a 
safeguarding pathway; 

(e) Support the partnership on the identification of funding opportunities for 
awareness raising actions and other relevant initiatives, which may link with 
the board’s safeguarding remit; 

(f) Assist the partnership in the development of a Modern Slavery profile for LLR. 
 
Person to contact 
 
Laura Pajón, Lecturer De Montfort University. 
Coordinator for Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland Modern Salvery Action Group 
Email:  laura.pajon@dmu.ac.uk 

28



 
 

LEICESTERSHIRE SAFER COMMUNITIES STRATEGY BOARD  
 

20TH MARCH 2020 
 

SAFER COMMUNITIES PERFORMANCE 2019/20 QUARTER 3 
 
 
 
Introduction 
 
1. The purpose of this report is to update the Leicestershire Safer Communities 

Strategy Board (LSCSB) regarding Safer Communities performance for 
2019/20 Q3. 

  
2. The Safer Communities dashboard is now available as an interactive online 

dashboard here.  
  

https://public.tableau.com/views/LeicestershireSaferCommunitiesDashboard/Le
icsSaferDashboard?:embed=y&:showVizHome=no 

 
Dashboard development is ongoing and now incorporates additional key 
performance indicators (KPI’s) to broaden understanding across each 
performance category. The underpinning data is included and can be seen by 
hovering the cursor over relevant points in the performance graphs. 

 
3. The dashboard includes a rolling 12 months comparison between the previous 

and current year and the direction of travel for that indicator. Trend over time is 
shown for quarterly data. The bar charts show the Leicestershire districts 
compared to Leicestershire and the regional average where available. 

 
4. The production of the online performance portal means data under each 

category is now readily available and accessible at any time. The increasingly 
complex dataset makes routine reporting across all performance areas 
impractical, unwieldy and unnecessary. The intention with this report going 
forward therefore is to move to exception reporting supplemented by a brief 
position statement under each performance category.  

 
 

Summary 
 
5. There is nothing exceptional to report. Overall crime and vehicle offences 

continue to show an adverse trend. Other performance indicators however 
remain stable or show positive direction of travel.  Several new performance 
indicators have been added to the online dashboard. 

 
 
 

29 Agenda Item 9

https://public.tableau.com/views/LeicestershireSaferCommunitiesDashboard/LeicsSaferDashboard?:embed=y&:showVizHome=no
https://public.tableau.com/views/LeicestershireSaferCommunitiesDashboard/LeicsSaferDashboard?:embed=y&:showVizHome=no
https://public.tableau.com/views/LeicestershireSaferCommunitiesDashboard/LeicsSaferDashboard?:embed=y&:showVizHome=no


  

Ongoing Reductions in Crime 
 

6. There is nothing exceptional to report: 

 Burglary offences have stabilised with the current rolling 12 months similar 
to the previous rolling 12 months.  

 Violence with injury offences have started to stabilise over the last 4 
quarters.  

 Vehicle offences continue to increase steadily but at a slower rate with the 
current rolling 12 months 10% higher than the previous rolling 12 months. 
The vehicle offence rate in Leicestershire (8.6) is higher than the regional 
average (6.8)   

 Overall Crime is still increasing, although the rate of increase has slowed. 
Most crime categories are performing in line or lower than the regional 
average, except vehicle crime which is slightly higher than the regional 
average.  

 
 

Reducing Offending and Re-offending 
 

7. Nothing exceptional to report although we are starting to see the first signs of 
the previously excellent reductions in reoffending levelling off. 

 
(a) The rate of first-time entrants (FTE’s) entering the criminal justice 

system (CJS) aged 10-17 is levelling;  
FTE totals for Leicestershire only were,190 in 2014/15  

              124 in 2015/16   
              126 in 2016/17  
              101 in 2017/18  
             100 in 2018/19  

For the current financial year 2019/20 latest figures April to September 
2019 show there have been 52 FTEs. 
  

(b) The rate of re-offending by young offenders likewise is showing early 
signs of levelling. To add context this is following a sustained and 
lengthy positive downward trend. The April 2018 to March 2019 re-
offending rate by young offenders was 1.37. This is an increase on the 
previous year’s performance of 0.71. The latest data Apr-Sept 2019 
shows a rate of 0.18. 

 
8. A new indicator has been added to the dashboard. There is a large body of 

research suggesting employment may reduce the likelihood of re-offending. 
The Youth Offending performance figure for young offenders actively engaging 
in education, employment and training (EET) is 62% for the period April – 
September 2019. This is slightly lower than the end of year figure 2018/19 of 
64%.  

 
9. Additional indicators are also monitored including Integrated Offender 

Management (IOM) data and local Community Rehabilitation Company (CRC 
Probation) data. Neither reveals anything of note.  

  

30



  

 
 Repeat Victimisation and Vulnerable Victims 
 
10. Several additional indicators have been added to the performance dashboard 

to supplement the MARAC repeat referral data and UAVA referral numbers 
already reported upon. The new KPI’s focus on providing a broader 
understanding of performance across domestic and sexual abuse. 

 
11. There is nothing exceptional to report; MARAC repeat referrals continue to 

increase (49%) however a recent change in criteria for referral has been 
identified as responsible. UAVA referrals (1887) continue to rise and other 
indicators are relatively stable and within expected levels. 

 
 
Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB) and Satisfaction 
 
12. The previous ASB performance data has now been expanded to cover two 

broad areas; 
(a) Satisfaction - there are two questions in the Community Based Survey 

(CBS) relevant to ASB Satisfaction. “% of people that agree ASB has 
decreased or stayed the same” and “the % who feel safe outside in their 
local area after dark”. Responses to both questions have shown a positive 
upward trend in the last five quarters. 
 

(b) ASB reporting – this has been added to the online portal and there are now 
two sources as detailed below; 

i. ASB extracted from the Police call management system, this is 
shown as ‘Total ASB (rate per thousand population)’ this is 
further broken down utilising the ‘PEN’ code and categorised as 
either ‘Personal’ ‘Environmental’ or ‘Nuisance’ ASB. This 
dataset is obtained when police call handlers deem a call is ASB 
and code the call accordingly. There is as such a caveat that 
calls are correctly categorised.   

ii. ASB recorded on Sentinel (the partnership ASB case 
management system). This dataset contains all case managed 
reports of ASB sourced from both Police and Local Authority 
partners. 

The two data sources are not distinct and there will inevitably be some 
duplication, for example not all reports of ASB will be case managed and 
find there way onto Sentinel, likewise reports made directly to local 
authorities will obviously not feature on the police call handling system. 

 
Nothing exceptional to report; although unexpectedly the level of Sentinel 
reporting (12.41 per thou) is higher than the reported Police ASB figure (8.5 per 
thou). 
 

 
 
 
 

31



  

Preventing terrorism and radicalisation 
 
13. Nothing notable to report, two additional performance indicators have been 

added. 
 

14. Hate incident reporting at 0.88 incidents per thousand is similar to the previous 
rolling 12 months (0.83).  64% were racial in nature, 19% were classified as 
sexual orientation and 8% were classified as disability. Numbers remain relatively 
low.  

 
15. Racially or religiously aggravated crime is very low with 0.3 crimes per 1,000 

population across Leicestershire. 
 
16. A question from the Leicestershire Insight Survey asks residents how much they 

agree that people from different backgrounds get on well. 94% of respondents 
agreed that people in their area get on well together. This is the same as the 
previous year’s response (94%).  
 

 
Recommendations  
 
17. The Board note the 2019/20 Q3 performance information. 
 
Officers to Contact  
 
Rik Basra 
Community Safety Coordinator 
Tel: 0116 3050619 
E-mail: rik.basra@leics.gov.uk 
 
Appendices 
The Safer Communities Performance Dashboard is no longer available as hardcopy. 
The current dashboard can be viewed via the ‘Online performance portal’ and is 
available here.  
https://public.tableau.com/views/LeicestershireSaferCommunitiesDashboard/LeicsSa
ferDashboard?:embed=y&:showVizHome=no 
  
 

32

mailto:rik.basra@leics.gov.uk
https://public.tableau.com/views/LeicestershireSaferCommunitiesDashboard/LeicsSaferDashboard?:embed=y&:showVizHome=no
https://public.tableau.com/views/LeicestershireSaferCommunitiesDashboard/LeicsSaferDashboard?:embed=y&:showVizHome=no
https://public.tableau.com/views/LeicestershireSaferCommunitiesDashboard/LeicsSaferDashboard?:embed=y&:showVizHome=no


 

LEICESTERSHIRE SAFER COMMUNITIES STRATEGY BOARD 

20th MARCH 2020  

LSCSB UPDATE: OFFICE OF THE POLICE AND CRIME 

COMMISSIONER 

 

Background 
 
1. The Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) through its office (OPCC) has a 

range of responsibilities including the following: 
 

 Overall responsibility for “the totality of policing”, which includes:  
 Providing strategic direction for the work of the police in 

consultation with the public; 
 Developing and delivering a Police and Crime Plan, through which 

to provide the strategic direction; 
 Holding the police accountable to the public for their efficiency 

and effectiveness; 
 Holding and setting the police budget and overseeing the whole 

estate; 

 Commissioning a range of services, including victim services; 

 Funding services and responsibilities, including community safety 
partnerships; 

 Providing some oversight and direction for the criminal justice system 
as a whole. 
 

2. The final element is probably less well developed than the others, reflecting 
the complexity of the criminal justice system, but this is a very clear ambition 
of the current PCC. 
 

3. On top of this, in order to deliver the Police and Crime Plan, the PCC needs to 
influence a range of services that have an impact on crime and other harmful 
behaviours. These services include health, drug and alcohol treatment, 
employment services and many others. There is a particular focus in the 
current Police and Crime Plan on the long term prevention of harmful 
behaviours, and this is most specifically seen in the recent development of the 
Violence Reduction Network.  
 

4. In order to achieve the wide ranging and long term elements of the Police and 
Crime Plan the PCC provides the leadership for the Strategic Partnership 
Board within LLR and for the East Midlands Criminal Justice Board. 

 
 
 

33 Agenda Item 10



Notable developments and challenges: 
 
Past Year 
 
5. Key developments over the past year have included:  

 

 The establishment of a Violence Reduction Network (VRN) for the 
whole of LLR. The VRN has now prepared its initial Strategic Needs 
Analysis and draft Response Plan, which are key requirements for the 
Home Office grant. These documents will map out the direction of VRN 
work over the coming year. The VRN has been invited to apply for 
funding for a second year of operation, although the intention is that the 
VRN will continue operating until its objectives have been met. 
 

 The reconfiguration and management of the Strategic Partnership 
Board and related sub-groups, particularly the development of a 
Prevention Board and the establishment of People Zones across the 
area. At its latest meeting on 14 January 2020 the SPB Executive 
Board identified certain priority harmful behaviours to target in addition 
to serious violence, which is already the focus of the VRN. These 
additional behaviours are: domestic violence, serious crime arising 
from specific traveller sites, behaviours arising from the night time 
economy, behaviours arising from substance misuse, behaviours 
arising from mental ill-health, missing people, exploitation of vulnerable 
people. The meeting added cyber-crime/fraud and gang related 
behaviour. The SPB Executive Board will undertake Deep Dive 
exercises on each of these behaviours in turn, with the aim of agreeing 
a future plan that will be taken to SPB for approval. The first of these 
sessions will focus on missing children. 

 The development of the East Midlands Criminal Justice Board. 

 The latest Community Safety Partnership (CSP) forum took place in 
Melton and agreed arrangements for the data packs for CSPs and for 
reporting arrangements. The notes are attached as an appendix.  

 The development of a commissioning strategy and undertaking new 
commissioning initiatives in collaboration with partners, particularly in 
areas such as domestic and sexual abuse services. 

 The establishment of a forum for the development of a long term 
strategy on mental health, which will now be addressed as part of the 
reconfiguration and management of the Strategic Partnership Board.  

 The development of a project for enhancing employment opportunities 
for ex-offenders. 

 The maintenance of a programme of community engagement across 
the area. 

 

34



 The stimulation of community led initiatives across the area via the 
PCC Prevention Fund. 

 The delivery of a campaign on modern slavery. 

 Support the development of a revised operating model within the 
police.  

 Work closely with the Ministry of Justice to establish a revised model 
and local oversight for delivering probation services and other services 
commissioned on a national basis. 

 
Coming Year 
 
6. The principle aim of the coming year is to embed the approach to the long 

term prevention of harmful behaviours across the area, working closely with 
partners in criminal justice, health, local authorities, including public health 
and others. This includes the further development of the Violence Reduction 
Network, People Zones and new initiatives particularly focussing on local 
communities. 
 

7. The PCC has agreed to fund three initiatives to enhance this approach. These 
are: 
 

 An updated version of People Zones drawing on a revised model and 
funding to establish a core role; 

 A programme to enable the development of community leaders across 
LLR; 

 A programme to establish multi use games areas (MUGA) with 
supporting activities.  
 

8. The details for each of these are being worked out and will announced as soon 
as possible. 
 

9. Alongside this the PCC aims to enhance its collaborative working with partners, 
particularly community safety partnerships and other inter-agency collaborative 
forms of working.  
 

10. The other main area of development is to enhance the level of community 
engagement, including engagement with young people and particular groups 
across the area.  
 

Key issues for partnership working or affecting partners 
 
11. Most of the work of the OPCC aligns with Community Safety Partnerships and 

therefore it is important to ensure our agendas are linked and regularly shared. 
For instance there is clearly a CSP role in relation to the work of the Violence 
Reduction Network and we are establishing a series of forums to explore this 
further. We have had similar discussions in relation to the work of SPB and the 
development of People Zones.  

35



 
Recommendations for the Board 
 
12. The Board is asked to note this report. 
 
 
Officer to Contact 
Paul Hindson 
Office of Police and Crime Commissioner 
Tel: 07535432852  
Email: paul.hindson@leics.pcc.pnn.gov.uk  
 

Appendix 
CSP Chairs Network Meeting notes - 24/01/20 

36

mailto:paul.hindson@leics.pcc.pnn.gov.uk


LLR SOG REPORTING -  

Organisation OPCC Author Victoria Charlton Date 26/02/2020 

Subject Title  CSP Chairs Network Meeting on 24/01/20 

Summary  
(Purpose, background 
& context for the 
report update) 
 
 

 
The twice yearly CSP Chairs Network Meeting has been running since September 2018 and is chaired by the current PCC, 
Lord Willy Bach.  It is an opportunity for the CSP chairs and officers, across LLR, to come together and discuss thematic 
issues, share good practice and promote partnership working.  It has also enabled the OPCC to relook at their offer and 
how they can better support the CSPs going forward.  The most recent meeting was held on 24th January 2020 at Melton 
Council Offices, with some good discussions and contributions from all partners.  The meetings are well attended with 
representation from every CSP across LLR. 

Update/s including 
specific workstreams.  
(initiatives, projects 
etc.) 

Paul Hindson gave a short presentation on the Relationship between SPB and CSP, following the SPB Exec session on 14th 
January 2020.  It outlined what is currently in place to manage harmful behaviours and explained the part the CSPs have 
to play in supporting this.  Having a two-way communication to highlight and address issues is key. 
 
VRN 
Grace Strong, the Strategic Director for the VRN, provided a quick overview; progress to date and future developments. 
 
The VRN is largely based on the Public Health Approach, focussed on prevention and long term aims as opposed to quick 
fixes.  The Public Health model looks at a whole system evidence-based approach, building and drawing on communities 
and utilising local assets.  The mantra being that Violence is Preventable. 
 
Development of a Strategic Needs Assessment and Response Strategy is underway as part of the expectations outlined 
by the Home Office.  This includes a reduction in: 

 Hospital admissions for assaults with a knife or sharp object (with particular focus on those victims aged under 
25) 

 Knife-enabled serious violence (with particular focus on those victims aged under 25) 

 All non-domestic related homicides (with particular focus on those victims aged under 25 involving knives) 
 
A recent development is the introduction of a new legal duty on public bodies to prevent and tackle serious violence, 
announced by the Home Secretary last year.  This covers the police, local councils, local health bodies, education 
representatives and youth offending services.  The aims of the duty are to ensure services: 

 share data, intelligence and knowledge 

 shared understanding of the root causes of serious violence including knife crime 

 Target interventions in partnership to prevent and stop violence  

 Identify warning signs, enabling partners to intervene earlier and protect young people 

37



 
Next Steps 
New guidance will be published to support the new legislation; different partnership models will be provided and how 
different organisations and sectors can partner with each other. 
The government will also be amending the Crime and Disorder Act to ensure that serious violence becomes the main 
priority for Community Safety Partnerships. 
 
Data Capability 
At the meeting in September the OPCC were tasked with developing a proposal for the reporting of data to CSPs.  
Consultations with the chairs and officers followed, with the feedback and responses analysed to help shape the 
proposal that was delivered at the meeting on 24th January.  The attached presentation outlines the details of the 
proposal and information on the types of data that will be included (slides 5 and 6).  Slide 7 includes information on 
additional data that can be provided; this would need extra resources, which could potentially come at a cost to the 
CSPs.  
 
As well as providing the data, the OPCC have committed to helping to design and analyse the data from any surveys that 
CSPs wish to carry out.  The idea was raised about working towards developing a joint survey between partners that 
would cover the whole of LLR and reduce the need of over surveying the public.  This would mean standardised 
questions and responses across all CSPs to allow the Performance Team to collectively analyse and compare results, 
producing a summary report of the findings that is available to all partners.   
 
Power BI dashboards and CSP packs will be trialled for the end of Q4 with support from the analysts.  CSPs will have the 
opportunity to feedback on the trialled pack/dashboard to allow for any changes and amendments.  The reporting 
process and dashboards will then be implemented by the end of the first quarter (2020/21) and will continue to be 
produced on a quarterly basis.  This will feed into the re-introduction of CSPs reporting to the OPCC on a quarterly basis 
as opposed to 6 monthly.  Revised templates should have been sent out to all CSPs. 

 
 

Notable 
developments, 
achievements, 
challenges & 
opportunities.  
(including 
implications for public 
& partners) 

In summary, the key actions of note discussed were:  

 Newsletter – Partners raised the point about communication being inconsistent and not always being kept up to 
date.  The idea arose about the need for a newsletter which summarised key themes across the strategic 
partnership meetings, ie SPB, LSCSB.  Action: OPCC (YI) to progress. 

 Basecamp overview – It was agreed a web-based forum would be useful as a communication tool amongst the 
CSP partners to share best practice and highlight any issues/cross-cutting themes.  Action: OPCC (ES) to send link 
to all CSPs for feedback so that the OPCC can take forward and progress. 

 Reporting – The PCC has agreed to give funding upfront to enable CSPs to better plan for the year ahead.  In term 

38



CSPs are required to produce quarterly reports to the OPCC.  Action: CSPs to receive funding upfront and go 
back to providing quarterly reports to OPCC.   

 Data – Action: Performance Team to continue developing dashboards ready for new financial year.  Note: this 
does not involve any cost implications to the CSPs. 

 Survey Analysis – to work collaboratively as a partnership to look at producing one survey that will provide a 
greater spread and depth of comparable data.  Action: VC to progress 

 

The next meeting date, 6 months from now, is end of July.  Factoring in summer holidays, it is proposed the next 
meeting be arranged the first week of September 2020. 
 
The meetings have primarily been held at Force Headquarters, with the exception of the 24th January which was hosted 
by Melton Borough Council.  It was suggested that going forward each partner takes a turn in offering to host and 
provide a venue to encourage partnership working.  Action: CSPs to notify OPCC (VC) of room availability for VC to 
progress.  

Gaps/Support 
Required. 
 

 
Offer of venue to host next CSP Chairs Network Meeting with new PCC. 
 

 

39



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          

LEICESTERSHIRE SAFER COMMUNITIES STRATEGY BOARD 

20 MARCH 2020  

UPDATE: THE LLR HATE ACTION PLAN FOR TACKLING HATE   

 
Purpose of report   

1. The purpose of this report is to update the Board on progress made against the 
Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland (LLR) Hate Action Plan 2018 - 21. The report 
also highlights the 12 month trend on reported hate incident and crimes and the 
promotional work undertaken during the National Hate Crime Awareness Week 
(NHCAW) October 2019, across LLR in partnership with Leicestershire Police.  

 
Background  
 
2. In December 2018 the LSCSB endorsed the ‘LLR Strategy Statement for Tackling 

Hate’ and the accompanying communications strategy. The aim being to promote a 
consistent approach across partners in tackling hate, both by reducing incidents and 
increasing reporting. This would be achieved by raising awareness and providing a 
better response to individual cases.  Our continued vision is to create a tolerant 
society where differences are accepted and valued within our communities and to 
make Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland safer places to live, work and visit.   
 

3. The definition of hate incident and hate crime was adopted by LSCSB in 2018, 
including the themes and priorities for the LLR Hate Action Plan 2018-21, which mirror 
those of the Police and Crime Plan 2017-21, as outlined in Appendix A. Due to the 
nature of hate incidents no single agency can work alone in tackling hate incidents 
and crimes. Partners have worked collaboratively to ensure people are made aware of 
how, when, where and who to report hate incidents and crimes, via campaigns and 
promotional work. 

 
Achievements 
 

Training Pack 
 
4. A training pack to raise awareness as to what we mean by hate incidents and crimes 

and where and how to get help and support has been developed and is being used by 
all partners. This training pack ensures a consistent message is being delivered 
across the county and is being used to raise general awareness amongst local 
businesses and local Hate Reporting Centres (HRC).  
 

5. A target was set for district and borough partners to identify a minimum of 5 local 
employers and to establish local champions within these businesses to help promote 
awareness about reporting hate. This action is ongoing and being progressed by 
partners.    

41 Agenda Item 11



 

 

 
District and Borough partners have also reviewed and checked if their local HRC are 
fit for purpose by identifying if these centres require further awareness training 
amongst their staff.  
 

 National Hate Crime Awareness Week Activity 
 
6. During the 2019 National Hate Crime Awareness Week (NHCAW), all partners 

successfully used the Joint Community Safety On-line Calendar for publicising local 
events and activities that were taking place to promote hate awareness including other 
relevant campaign events. This joint calendar has been a great success and will 
continue to be used by all partners in promoting and sharing key events and 
campaigns.   

 
7. All partners have been collating their own directory of key contacts to assist in 

reaching out within the community. The approach aims to help boost publicity and 
awareness when campaigning or distributing publicity material locally.  

 
8. During the NHCAW a joined-up approach was taken with all main Libraries across the 

county and Melton Borough Council to promote and run a competition titled ‘Respect 
and Kindness, Not Hate’. This competition was in the form of a card that tasked 
participants to undertake a number of positive activities within their community. It was 
open to everyone but was particularly aimed at children aged between 4 – 12 years. A 
number of entries were submitted by people with learning disabilities. The competition 
took place during the month of October, in total 10 entries were received, and a 
random prize draw took places with 1st, 2nd and 3rd positions receiving a gift voucher 
sourced from local business.    

 

9. To ensure consistency in communication during the NCHAW a social media pack was 
produced by Leicestershire County Council in collaboration with the Police and shared 
with all partners. This publicity ran from 11th – 20th October. Analysis from the media 
coverage highlighted that over 185 thousand people were reached across facebook 
and twitter. This is a huge reach considering the number of posts submitted, which 
included seven on facebook and seven on twitter. Sixty-four people liked one 
message that promoted an image, which indicated that images draw people in.  In 
summary coverage is always better when using twitter than facebook and that overall 
the take up on social media was good.  

 
 ‘Stamp It Out’ Campaign 
 
10. The Police led on refreshing and relaunching the partnership led ‘Stamp It Out’ 

project. ‘Stamp It Out’ brings together different partners and organisations who are 
committed to challenging, tackling and stamping out hate within Leicester, 
Leicestershire and Rutland, proactively working together to encourage the reporting of 
hate crime and incidents.  This work involved re-creating and updating the posters and 
leaflet and refreshing the website.  The relaunch of the new content coincided with 
National Hate Crime Awareness week in 2019. This was very much a partnership 

42



 

 

approach and the County Council, District and Boroughs (and the City Council) were 
all asked for feedback prior to these being publicised. 
 

11. There is now a library of 46 different posters available (previously there were 12 
posters) and a toolkit of digital media. Both will shortly be made available to all 
partners, community groups, organisations, educational establishments and interested 
parties, content can be utilised across all social media platforms and compliment and 
‘bring to life’ the existing posters. 

 

12. The digital posters are already being used in a number of schools and have been 
shared with community groups via WhatsApp and distributed to their members. The 
aim being to raise awareness of what hate crime is and encouraging reporting. 

 
 Hate Crime Survey 
 
13. A Hate Crime Survey was commissioned by the Hate Crime Scrutiny Panel and 

Leicestershire Police ran the survey from July 2019 to the end of September 2019.  
There was a good response to the survey from across LLR both via the survey 
monkey link which was shared on social media, in paper format via locality groups and 
community links and through interaction at community events using iPads to complete 
via Survey Monkey.  In total 550 returns were received, and findings show a near 
50/50 split between those who had been a victim of a hate crime and those who had 
not.  
 

14. During analysis it was noted that many questions had not been answered by 
respondents and consideration will be given to how questions are worded in any 
future surveys.   

 

15. It was encouraging to note that the majority of respondents said that they would report 
incidents to the Police.  Focusing on raising awareness of hate crime reporting 
mechanisms and how to report hate crime will continue and more community 
engagement and education awareness sessions are planned for 2020. 

 
 Other Initiatives 
 
16. All partners are aware of the community portal set up by the police, and regular 

reminders are issued to all partners, to share local information on issues of community 
tension. Additionally, under our prevent duty all local authorities complete the annual 
Counter Terrorism Local Profiling (CTLP) questionnaire. The last CTLP was submitted 
by all partners for end of 2019.  
 

17. Victim First have engaged with police stations and have been involved in community 
events across the county. Their aim being to promote awareness of victim support 
services they offer. They have also used social media to access a greater reach of 
people. 

 

43



 

 

18. All Joint Action Groups (JAGS) across the county have hate and prevent as part of 
their agenda as good practice to ensure any relevant issue is flagged or discussed, if 
required.   

 
Trend over the last 12 months on Reported Hate Crime and Incidents in 
Leicestershire County   
 

Levels of hate crime and incidents 
 
19. For the period January 2019 to December 2019 there were 747 hate crimes and 

incidents recorded by the police and on SENTINEL. This is higher than the previous 
year of 721. The chart below shows monthly levels of hate crimes and incidents over a 
two-year period. There is a slight increasing trend with levels higher during the 
summer months and lower during the winter months. There was a spike in Hate 
crimes and Incidents in October 2018 with 83 reports.  
 

20. Diagram 1. Monthly hate crime and incident levels across Leicestershire for the period 
January 2018 to December 2019. 

 
 
 

 
 
Source: Police Crimsec4 and SENTINEL case management system 

 
Types of Hate crime and incidents 

 
21. The types of hate crime recorded by the police fall into 6 main categories: Racial, 

Religious, Sexual Orientation, Disability, Transgender and Other. Diagram 2 shows 
the proportion of hate crimes reported in each category. One incident of hate may be 
classified as more than one type, for example Racial and Religious. The diagram 
below shows that in the last year 64% of all types were Racial and 15.2% were 

44



 

 

because of a person’s sexual orientation. The proportions are similar to the national 
picture.  
 

22. Diagram 2: Types of hate crimes and incidents reported across Leicestershire in the 
last 12 months. (source: Police Crimsec4 and SENTINEL case management system). 

 
 

 
 
Source: Police Crimsec4 and SENTINEL case management system 

 
Locations of hate crimes and incidents 

 
23. When comparing Reported Hate Crime and Incidents across Leicestershire, 

Harborough has the lowest rate and Charnwood has the highest rate per 1000 
population.  
 

24. Diagram 3: Hate reporting by district (rate per 1000 population). 
 

 

45



 

 

Source:  Police Crimsec4 

 
 
25. Areas with the highest levels of reported hate are mainly in town centres and retail 

parks. Diagram 4 below shows the top 12 areas in Leicestershire for reported hate.  
 

Diagram 4: Areas with the highest levels of reported hate by lower super output area. 
(rates per 1000 population). 

 

 
Source:  Police Crimsec4 

 
26. More information on reported hate across Leicestershire, Leicester and Rutland can 

be found on LSR Online at https://www.lsr-online.org/crime-and-community-
safety.html 

 
 
Recommendations  
 
27. It is recommended that the Board:   
 

(a) Notes the achievements and progress made against the Hate Action Plan;  
 

(b) Note the trend in figures presented on reported hate crimes and incidents over 
the last 12 months.  

 
 
 
 
 

46

https://www.lsr-online.org/crime-and-community-safety.html
https://www.lsr-online.org/crime-and-community-safety.html


 

 

Officer to Contact  
Anita Chavda  
Projects and Planning Officer  
Community Safety Team  
Children and Family Services  
Tel: 0116 3057662 
anita.chavda@leics.gov.uk 
 
Officer to Contact  
Isla Dixon  
Hate Crime Officer  
Leicestershire Constabulary 
Isla.dixon@leicestershire.pnn.police.uk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

47

mailto:anita.chavda@leics.gov.uk
mailto:Isla.dixon@leicestershire.pnn.police.uk


 

 

APPENDIX A 
 
Definition of Hate Incident and Hate Crime 
 
The Home Office’s ‘Action Against Hate’ report 2016 details: 
 
‘A crime that is motivated by hostility on the grounds of race, religion, sexual orientation, 
disability or transgender identity can be classed as a hate crime.’  
 
Within LLR we record incidents and crimes against these five categories, as well as 
including a category for ‘any other perceived difference’ to align with Leicestershire Police’s 
recording of hate. Detailed below are the differences between hate incidents and crimes. 
 
Hate Incident - any non-crime incident which is perceived by the victim or any other person, 
to be motivated by hostility or prejudice. 
   
 Some examples of hate incidents:   
   

 A person is bullied or intimidated and perceives this behaviour as being motivated 
because of their disability.  

 A person is experiencing rubbish being thrown into their garden and their driveway 
being blocked with parked cars and perceives that it is motivated by homophobia.  

 
Hate Crime - any criminal offence which is perceived by the victim or any other person, to 
be motivated by hostility or prejudice.  
 
 Some examples of hate crime: 
 

 An offender shouts racist abuse whilst physically assaulting a person 

 A Synagogue has swastika’s painted on the door and windows smashed.  
 
Themes and Priorities  
 
The themes and priorities of the Hate Strategy mirror the key themes within the Leicester, 
Leicestershire and Rutland Police and Crime Plan 2017- 21, which are: 

 To enhance Leicestershire Police’s response to hate crime 

 To improve user experience and increase satisfaction to support and influence the 
development of effective partnership working and campaigns 

 To ensure effective monitoring of performance and baseline 

 To capture and review emerging good practice and evidence based policing for hate 
crime.  

 
The 2018-21 priorities for this strategy have been identified as: 

 Raising awareness  

 Improving our response, identifying and responding to emerging issues 

 Re-assuring, strengthening and educating communities. 

48



 

LEICESTERSHIRE SAFER COMMUNITIES STRATEGY BOARD 

20TH MARCH 2020  

REPORT OF PUBLIC HEALTH, LEICESTERSHIRE COUNTY 

COUNCIL 

LSCSB UPDATE: DOMESTIC AND SEXUAL VIOLENCE AND ABUSE 

RE-PROCUREMENT  

 
Purpose of Report 
 
1. The purpose of this report is to provide an update on the progress and plans in 

relation to the re-procurement of domestic and sexual violence and abuse 
services (DSVA) for Leicestershire.  
 

Background 
 

2. Commissioning partners are Leicestershire County Council, Leicester City 
Council, Rutland County Council, and the Police and Crime Commissioner 
(PCC). Responsibility for the commissioning of domestic and sexual violence 
and abuse services (DSVA) transferred from LCC Children and Families to 
LCC Public Health in September 2019. The current contracts for DSVA 
services across Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland (LLR) continue until 31st 
March 2021.  

 
Notable developments and challenges: 
 
Past Year 
 
3. Prior to the transfer, commissioning partners established a LLR Domestic 

Abuse Redesign and Recommissioning Group, now including Public Health. 
The Group meets on a regular basis and is responsible for the project plan and 
project workstreams. The Group reports to the LLR Vulnerability Executive on a 
regular basis.  

 
4. Initial Stakeholder consultation sessions took place towards the end of 2018 to 

understand the strengths and challenges of the current provision. Feedback 
from these sessions informed the development of future service provision. 

 
5. A Public Consultation took place from September to November 2019 across 

LLR. There were 28 responses that were specifically from County residents. 
Across LLR key points from the consultation included questions about opening 
hours and extending opening hours to include Sunday’s, Bank Holidays and/or 
24/7; ensuring accessibility particularly for the accommodation/refuge service, 

49 Agenda Item 12



longer term support required, and more specialist counselling support required. 
However, overall there was strong support for all elements of service provision.  

 
Coming Year 
 
6. The Project Plan has been updated and more specific detail has been included. 

It is still expected that the tender will go out to the market in June 2020 for 
services to commence on 1st April 2021. 

 
7. The funding envelope for each partner has been finalised and the different 

service provision ‘Lots’ have been agreed. The different service provision will 
include the Helpline and Engagement Service, Locality Domestic Abuse 
Support service, Sexual Violence Support service, Safe 
Accommodation/Refuge service, Perpetrators Programme (and for the City only 
a Children’s Support service). 

 

8. Current ongoing workstreams are; 

 Writing and refining of the service specifications for each service; 

 Compiling Equality and Human Rights Impact Assessments for the 
overall model; 

 Completion of the Joint Working Agreement to underpin the ongoing 
relationship management between commissioning partners with 
support of LCC Legal Team;  

 Completion of Data Protection Impact Assessment (DPIA) with the 
support of LCC Information Governance Lead; 

 Completion of tender documentation with support of LCC 
Commissioning Support Unit.  

    
9. Challenges 

 The key challenge for commissioning partners remains that the existing 
financial envelope is not sufficient to address all the suggestions from 
the feedback (eg 24/7 helpline, open-ended counselling support, more 
accommodation in more locations); 

 Challenge to ensure each authority has the service it needs for 
residents whilst ensuring a seamless pathway of service provision and 
efficient contract management/assurance for each partner; 

 Overall timeline is challenging due to the various governance and sign-
off arrangements of different commissioning partners.  

 

Key issues for partnership working or affecting partners 
 
10. Whilst there are challenges to an approach involving 4 commissioning partners, 

adopting an LLR approach where practicable will allow economies of scale and 
a co-ordinated pathway across different service provision and different 
geographical areas. 

 
 
 
 

50



Recommendations for the Board 
 
11. The Board is asked to note the work being undertaken to recommission the 

domestic and sexual violence and abuse services for Leicester, Leicestershire 
and Rutland . 

 
 
Officer to contact 
Debra Cunningham  
Public Health, Leicestershire County Council 
Tel: 0116 305 2684  
Email:     debra.cunningham@leics.gov.uk  

51

mailto:debra.cunningham@leics.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of previous meeting.
	5 LSCSB Action Log.
	6 Cyber Crime.
	Cybercrime LSCSB - 2020 presentation

	7 Modern Day Slavery Action Group.
	9 LSCSB Performance Update - Quarter 3.
	10 Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner and Strategic Partnership Board Update.
	OPCC Appndx - SOG REPORTING - OPCC Feb20

	11 Hate Crime/Incidents.
	12 Domestic and Sexual Violence Abuse Reprocurement.

